CANDLEWOOD SHORES TAX DISTRICT

Board of Directors Meeting Wednesday, April 15, 2020, 2020, 7:30 PM Web Meeting, via Zoom.com

1. CALL TO ORDER

- A. Elizabeth called the regular meeting of the Candlewood Shores Tax District (CSTD) Board of Directors to order at 7:32 pm, on April 15, 2020.
- B. Thirty-one members of the Candlewood Shores Community were in attendance.

2. ROLL CALL

- A. The following directors were present:
 - I. Elizabeth Longworth President
 - II. Alan Owen Vice President
 - III. Kenneth Appley Treasurer
 - IV. Steven DeMichele Secretary
 - V. Jon Lepler Director
- VI. Kelly Lane Director
- VII. Lisa Maguire Director
- VIII. Linda Wagner Director
- B. The following staff were present:
 - I. Travis Hyatt Scalzo Community Manager
 - II. Lisa Daly CSTD Office Manager
- C. The following directors were absent:
 - I. Brigid Knauer Director
- D. The following guests were present:
 - I. Adam Cohen CSTD Attorney
 - II. Adam Singer CSTD Grounds Maintenance Contractor (CT Fence)

3. **HEARINGS**

A. None.

4. APPROVAL OF MINUTES

- A. The following amendments were made to the minutes from the February 19, 2020 CSTD Board of Directors Meeting:
 - Kelly Lane reported that the February minutes indicated CSTD had approval for twenty-six moorings, from First Light. This is incorrect; there is no approval from First Light at this time.
- B. **A Motion** was made by Alan, to approve the February 19, 2020 meeting minutes, which was seconded by Kelly and unanimously approved.

5. **GUEST SPEAKERS**

A. None.

6. FIRST PUBLIC COMMENT

- A. The following questions were asked and statements made, during this public comment period.
- B. Steven Dwyer, of 22 North Lakeshore Drive inquired as to the status of the water main replacement project on North Lake Shore Drive and why the CSTD board is considering other projects and not making this project a priority. Travis responded that there is currently no update from the February CSTD board meeting. Elizabeth furthered that this project is a top priority for the CSTD board but that there has been some delay, as a special meeting will be required to hire an engineering consultant, which has also been delayed due to the COVID-19 outbreak in the area.
 - After some further discussion, Adam Cohen, clarified that there is no legal reason why CSTD cannot move money between CSTD and Candlewood Shores Water District.
- C. Loretta Donovan, of 42 Candlewood Shores Road commented that the Candlewood Shores Water District is not really a separate company from CSTD and that funds can be moved between the two entities. However, she does not recommend it. Loretta commented further, that she is concerned that COVID-19 is creating situations, where residents will be unable to pay their CSTD tax and water bills; she recommended that

the CSTD board create a subcommittee, to address this concern. Elizabeth and Ken indicated that the CSTD board would work directly with any resident who has trouble paying their CSTD property or water bills. Adam Cohen informed the CSTD board that CSTD was obligated to follow whatever tax relief plan the Town of Brookfield adopts.

- D. Kevin O'Conner, of 28 Berkshire Drive asked if there is any impact of COVID-19 on the CSTD budget. Ken replied that there was no effect at this time.
- E. Carol Dores, 80 North Lakeshore Drive recommended that the annual community survey be put on hold until COVID-19 passes. There was a discussion and Travis recommended that a decision to move forward with the survey and what questions would be part of the survey be tabled unitil a more thorough conversation can be had in the future.

7. TREASURER'S REPORT

- A. Ken presented the Treasurer's Report.
- B. Tax District Balance \$971,880.88
- C. Water District Balance \$401,646.90
- D. Ken reminded residents attending the meeting, that if they are having trouble paying their CSTD tax or water bills, to contact Scalzo Property Management, to work out a payment plan.
- E. Ken and Travis crafted a draft 2020-2021 CSTD budget.
 - I. The CSTD 2020-2021 draft budget will likely be the same as the current CSTD 2019-2020 budget.
 - II. Travis and Ken have been successful in getting vendors to hold their prices.
- F. The Candlewood Shores Water District budget 2020-2021 will also likely remain the same as the 2019-2020 budget, at least until the COVID-19 outbreak passes.
 - I. Ken reported that by July 2020, the Candlewood Shores Water District will have paid CSTD back in full.
- G. Elizabeth asked for an update on the status of Certificates of Deposit, held by CSTD.

8. MANAGEMENT REPORT

- A. Travis presented the Management Report.
- B. Work to identify grants, to assist in funding the water main replacement on North Lake Shore Drive continues but an engineer needs to be engaged to assist.
- C. A. Silvero reported that CSTD is still on the schedule for April, for speed bump installation. Travis cautioned that the COVID-19 outbreak may ultimately delay this project.
- D. CT Fence has corrected the speed sign post, at the intersection of Candlewood Shores Road and Twilight Lane. Brookfield PD needs to be engaged to install the sign itself.

 Need to follow up with Brookfield PD on speed sign
- E. The replacement of the dock and planters boxes was completed by CT Fence.
- F. The First Light permit, required for the replacement of the dock wall has been completed.
- G. There was a review of open work orders.

9. **GUEST SPEAKER**

A. None.

10. COMMITTEE REPORTS

- A. Safety Committee Report Michael Bonamarte
 - I. Michael presented the Safety Committee Report.
 - II. No meetings since the last meeting.
 - III. Michael asked about beach closures in the wake of COVID-19 and social distancing. The CSTD board reported that no decision was made at this time. Adam Cohen informed the board that CSTD has the authority to close the beach, dock and other common areas if it chooses to.
 - IV. Lisa asked if the small boat registration should move forward Saturday. Elizabeth answered that it should.

- B. Beautification Committee Report Elizabeth Longworth
 - I. Elizabeth presented the Beautification Committee Report.
 - II. New boxes are in and flowers will be planted prior to Memorial Day.
 - III. Flowers have been installed at CSTD front entrance.
- C. Recreation Committee Report Jon Lepler
 - I. Jon presented the Recreation Committee Report.
 - II. Jon asked if funds from current CSTD 2019 2020 budget could be held and put toward the CSTD 75th anniversary party later in 2020.
 - III. All other recreation events are currently on hold.
- D. Ordinance Linda Wagner
 - I. Linda had no updated, the committee has not met.
- E. Landscaping Report Adam Singer (CT Fence)
 - I. Adam Singer presented the landscape report.
 - II. Travis has received requests to extend the leaf and brush pickup end date in the wake of the April 13th storm. The CSTD board agreed to extend the date to April 24th. Travis will send an email notification to the community.

11. ADMINISTRATION

A. None.

12. **NEW BUSINESS**

- A. Planting Plan for Boat Ramp Discussion
 - There was a discussion regarding First Light requirements for plantings below the 440 line. The CSTD board was provided with proposals for the completion of this work.
 - II. Adam Cohen clarified that if funds were approved by the residents at a previous budget meeting, no special meeting is required to spend those funds at a later date
 - III. The CSTD board is looking into simplifying the planting plan, to reduce the project cost.

B. Radio Licensing Renewal

I. No action needed at this time.

C. American Pool Agreement

- I. This contract is for the continuation of lifeguards at the CSTD beach in 2020.
- II. Elizabeth requested that American Pool provide different life guard staff for the 2020 beach season.
- III. **A Motion** was made by Elizabeth, to award the life guard contract, to American Pool, in the amount of \$41,250.00, for the summer 2020 beach season, which was seconded by Alan and unanimously approved.

D. Porta Potties and Foot Wash Discussion

- There was a discussion around renting a single larger porta pottie, to replace the three that are normally rented and moving the single unit away from the water pipe.
- II. There was also a discussion about installing a foot wash, at the present location of the water pipe.

E. Guard Shack and Gates Discussion

I. There was a discussion on obtaining costs and ideas for a guard shack and gates, to provide additional security to the community.

F. Beach Lighting and Cove Clean Up Discussion

I. There was a discussion on obtaining costs and ideas for lighting improvements at the beach, to reduce light pollution and improve security.

G. Hotel Discussion

 There was a discussion as to whether the "hotel", at 370 Candlewood Lake Road, was receiving free water from the Candlewood Shores Water District. Travis confirmed that this was not the case.

H. Nominating Committee Discussion

 Steven Dwyer, Lisa McGuire and Nancy Johnson volunteered to be on the CSTD nominating committee for the 2020 CSTD board elections at the 2020 annual meeting.

I. Kayak Rack Proposal

- I. Adam Singer proposed the installation of an additional kayak rack inside of the beach fence, to hold up to six kayaks.
- II. A Motion was made by Alan, to award the kayak rack contract, to CT Fence, in the amount of \$3,000.00, which was seconded by Kelly and unanimously approved.

13. OLD BUSINESS

- A. Irrigation Discussion
 - I. Tabled.
- B. CT Fence and Landscaping Contract Discussion
 - I. **A Motion** was made by Elizabeth, to award a one year contract, to CT Fence and Landscaping, in an amount not to exceed \$194,670.03, which was seconded by Alan and unanimously approved.
- C. Mooring Ordinance Revision and Fee Discussion
 - I. Kelly has made revisions to this document, which consisted of added definitions, expansions on maintenance and inspection requirements, as well as requirements for the abandonment or sale of moorings. The revisions also require proof of insurance on the moored vessel.
 - II. Revisions to the small boat vessel section include the requirement to remove all small vessels from the kayak racks by November 15th, each year and fees for a failure to do so.
 - III. **A Motion** was made by Alan, to increase the mooring fee up to \$150.00, to become effective with the 2020 boating season, which was seconded by Elizabeth and approved, with one opposed vote, from Linda Wagner.

14. **SECOND PUBLIC COMMENT**

A. Steven Dwyer, of 22 North Lakeshore Drive – asked for clarification on the life guard contract and on the landscape contract that were awarded at this meeting.

B. Bert Coleman, of 37 Twilight Lane – complimented the community cleanup effort and noted that on North Lakeshore Drive, the pavement is coming up. Adam Singer responded that he would look into it. Mr. Coleman also commented that, in regards to the beach, CSTD should follow what the Town of Brookfield does at its beach and finally that the mooring fee should cover maintenance work related the dock and moorings themselves.

C. Loretta Donovan, of 42 Candlewood Shores Road – provided history on Candlewood Shores Water District service to the "hotel", at 370 Candlewood Lake Road.

D. Laura Boullianne, of 50 Mountainview Drive – expressed concerned about the lack of speed bumps on Mountain View Drive.

E. Ronnie Shepard, of 147 North Lake Shore Drive – suggested the community remove a section of fence between the beach and field, to allow residents more room to socially distance, instead of closing the beach outright.

F. Mike Bonamarte, of 24 Longview Drive—asked where the new kayak rack that Adam is working on was located.

15. EXECUTIVE SESSION

A. None.

16. ADJOURMENT

A. **A Motion** was made by Alan, to adjourn the meeting of the CSTD Board of Directors, at 9:35 pm, which was seconded by Elizabeth and unanimously approved.

Minutes Taken By:

Steven DeMichele - Secretary

Minutes Submitted By:

Steven DeMichele - Secretary